
CHAIR, DENNIS MARTINEZ; VICE-CHAIR, HEIDI WATTERS; COMMISSIONERS, SHARON 
MANN, MIKE HANSEN, LOUISE STRANDER, KAREN SIMMONS AND DIXIE STARK  

PLANNING COMMISSION WORK SESSION 
February 28, 2019 - 6:30 PM 

TUKWILA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ATTENDANCE

III. ADOPT MINUTES

IV. WORK SESSION ON CRITICAL AREAS REPORT

V. ADJOURN



2



City of Tukwila 
BOAR 

BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
MINUTES

Date: January 24, 2019 
Time: 6:30 PM  
Location: Council Chambers 

Present: Chair Dennis Martinez, Vice-Chair Heidi Watters, Commissioners Sharon Mann, 
Mike Hansen, Louise Strander and Dixie Stark 

Absent: Commissioner Karen Simmons 

 Staff: Planning Supervisor Minnie Dhaliwal, Senior Planner Jaimie Reavis, and Planning 
Commission Secretary Wynetta Bivens  

Adopt 
Minutes: Commissioner Strander requested an amendment to the January 10, 2019 minutes. 

In the December 13, 2018 minutes the word “ritualization” should be revised to “re-
channelization”. Also, Commissioner Stark requested to amend the word “access” 
to “asset” on page 3. 

Commissioner Mann made a motion to adopt the January 10, 2019 minutes as 
amended. Commissioner Hansen seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 

Commissioner Mann made a motion to adopt the October 25, 2018 Board of 
Architectural Review (BAR) minutes. 
Commissioner Hansen seconded the motion.  Motion passed. 

Commissioner Hansen made a motion to adopt the October 25, 2018 Planning 
Commission (PC) work session minutes.  Commissioner Watters seconded the 
motion. Motion passed. 

Chair Martinez opened the public hearing and swore in those wishing to provide testimony. 

CASE NUMBERS: L18-0026 Design Review 
     L18-0027 Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 

APPLICANT:  Sean Hill of Broderick Architects on behalf of Vietnamese Martyrs Parish 
REQUEST: The applicant proposes a 7,000sf addition to an existing office building to 

create a learning center, partial demolition and construction of an addition to 
the main church building (67,500 sf), and related improvements including 
restriping and expanding the parking lot and landscaping. 

LOCATION: 6841 and 6847 S. 180th Street 

Minnie Dhaliwal, Planning Supervisor gave the presentation. She provided some background on the 
project. She said this item was before the BAR on October 25, 2018 and the hearing was continued to 
January 10, 2018 because the comment period for Department of Community Development (DCD) 
State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) had not concluded. Therefore, no action could take place 
during the comment period. Additionally, the applicant submitted a letter at the hearing requesting  

3



Page 2 of 5 
January 24, 2019 
BAR Minutes 

relief from the public access requirement, which was a Shoreline Master Program requirement. Staff 
worked with the applicant to find a mutually agreeable location for the public access, which was 
reviewed as part of the shoreline permit.  The shoreline substantial development permit has been 
issued.  Since the hearing was rescheduled to January 24, 2019 new public notice regarding the 
hearing date was provided, which included notice to the property owners within 500 feet of the 
property; posting the site; and publication in the newspaper. 

Staff asked the Commissioners the appearance of fairness questions.  There were no disclosures, and 
no one objected to the Commissioners hearing the project. 

A walkthrough of the proposal was given, which is for a (CUP) and a design review application. 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP): 

There are three phases of the project.  Staff recommended approval of the CUP with two conditions. 
Typically, CUP permits expire within a year. However, this is a phased project and the project 
requires a substantial shoreline development permit approval, which has a five-year expiration 
timeframe. Therefore, staff recommended the expiration of the CUP be consistent with the shoreline 
permit. Under the shoreline provisions the construction will start in two years and be completed in 
five years, with the possibility of a one-year extension that may be granted by the DCD Director.  

DESIGN REVIEW: 

Staff summarized the criteria of approval for the design review and recommended approval with two 
conditions. 

Staff answered questions from the Commissioners. 

Sean Hill, Architect for the applicant, said the only change to the project since it was heard by the 
BAR in October was the public access they have been working on with staff. He asked for approval of 
the project.  

MOTION: 

Commissioner Hansen moved to approve with conditions case number L18-0026, Design Review 
based on the findings and conclusions contained in the staff reports dated January 15, 2019 and 
October 25, 2018 minutes. Commissioner Strander seconded the motion. Motion passed. 

Commissioner Hansen moved to approve with conditions case number L18-0027, CUP based on the 
findings and conclusions contained in the staff reports dated January 15, 2019 and October 25, 2018 
minutes.  Commissioner Strander seconded the motion. Motion passed. 

COMMENTS: 

Commissioner Watters said she is excited about the project, but she was disappointed that there 
wasn’t specific plant species listed because it makes it hard to evaluate long-term value of the 
materials. She said, in the future, it would be better for it to be listed. 

Father Thanh Dao, the applicant, said they appreciate all the support for their church.  He said 
they would like to work with the City and to make the city a better place. He also stated they will 
abide by the law.  In conclusion he thanked the Commissioners. 

4



Page 3 of 5 
January 24, 2019 
BAR Minutes 

CASE NUMBERS:  L18-0112 Variance 
L18-0065 Design Review Major Modification 
L08-079 Preliminary Subdivision Plat 

APPLICANT:  Mike Overbeck 
REQUEST: (1) Variance from side and rear yard setbacks, landscaping standards; and

design review for construction of a third story on the building located at 
14424 34th Ave S., and (2) Design Review Major Modification and 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat approval for phase 2 of the Osterly Park 
Townhomes. The 14424 34th Ave S. building will share recreation spaces 
and parking spaces within the Osterly Park Townhomes. Phase 2 of the 
Osterly Park Townhomes includes construction of 15 townhomes, guest 
parking, access, recreation space, and landscaping.  

LOCATION: 14426 34th Ave S.; 14424 34th Ave S.; and 14401-14420 34th Lane S.;  
(Tax parcel numbers: 6433600090, 0040000083, 6433600110, 6391110000) 

Jaimie Reavis, Senior Planner, for DCD, gave the presentation.  The preliminary subdivision plat and 
the design review applications were heard by the BAR on October 11, 2018.  The October 11, 2018 
hearing was continued because the BAR requested additional clarification and information be 
submitted. On December 13, 2018 the hearing was closed because the applicant added a variance 
application for approval for Lot 24 building. Information was given on the status of the construction 
and the phases of the project. 

Staff asked the BAR the appearance of fairness questions. Commissioners Hansen, Strander and Stark 
each disclosed they had exparte communication with the DCD staff about the project.  No one 
objected to the Commissioners hearing the project. 

Staff provided background on the October 11, 2018 hearing.  Staff said the applicant provided all 
items requested by the BAR and have also formed a Home Owners Association (HOA), which was 
formed with the owners of the Phase1 property.  

An overview was given of the project for the variance, preliminary subdivision plat, and design 
review major modification. 

VARIANCE: 

The applicant requested a variance for setbacks and landscaping for the existing building located at 
14424 34th Ave S. (Lot 24 of the proposed preliminary subdivision plat), which does not meet setback 
requirements along the west and north property lines. Also, it was noted that there is not enough space 
for required perimeter landscaping. Lot 24 will become part of the Osterly plat and will share 
landscaping. Staff recommended approval with three conditions as listed in the January 14, 2019 staff 
report. 

DESIGN REVIEW MAJOR MODIFICATION: 

An overview was given on the site plan, pedestrian and vehicular circulation, parking, and 
landscaping and building design.  The applicant requested landscaping modifications to allow a 
perimeter sidewalk and to cluster required trees and shrubs. Staff recommended approval of the major 
modification to the design of the Osterly Park Townhomes with six conditions as listed in the January 
14, 2019 staff report. 

Staff answered questions for the Commissioners. 
5



Page 4 of 5 
January 24, 2019 
BAR Minutes 

PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT: 

Staff said preliminary plat approvals are granted by the BAR for subdivisions of more than 10 lots or 
unit lots.  The project initially received preliminary approval in 2008.  The applicant is applying for 
new approval of a revised Phase II.  The criteria address compliance with the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan, appropriate infrastructure for the development, easements proposed for shared utility areas, lot 
design, compliance with subdivision and zoning regulations, maintenance, common infrastructure, 
recreation spaces and compliance with state law. Staff is recommending approval with 26 conditions 
as listed in the January 14, 2019 staff report.  

Mike Overbeck, applicant and developer, was present to answer questions. He said there were some 
minor changes to the recreation area.  He talked about the challenges, many revisions and Jaimie 
Reavis’ hard work.  He said it has been a very trying project, but he has gotten lots of positive 
feedback regarding the project. 

Mr. Overbeck responded to questions and concerns from the Commissioners. Mr. Overbeck said 
some of the comments from the community were appalling. When asked about the number of 
conditions for approval for the preliminary plat he said he is not alarmed.   

Commissioner Watters inquired about the raised planters in the recreation space and suggested 
starter plants be put in the planters. The applicant said he could suggest it to the HOA that the 
planter be kept aesthetically pleasing. 

Commissioner Strander asked if the original homeowners had input in the plot design. Staff said 
a Notice of Application (NOA) and hearing was done in October and again in December. There 
have also been conversations with the homeowners and meetings with the HOA regarding the 
project. Staff said no public comments were received in response to the most recent NOA sent out 
in December.   

There was no public testimony. 

The public hearing was closed. 

DELIBERATION: 

Commissioner Hansen said he appreciated the amount of effort, time and years the applicant has 
spent to bring townhomes to Tukwila.  He said itis not perfect but there is a lot to like about it, and 
he is supportive of keeping the project secure through fencing.  He also said there were enough 
conditions that the project will be well monitored. 

Commissioner Mann said if this project is successful maybe there will be successive projects 
along the Tukwila Blvd.  She also thanked staff and everyone else who have put patience and time 
into the project. 

Commissioner Martinez said our region is suffering from affordable housing and townhomes are 
helpful to young families starting out.  He said staff done an excellent job on the presentation both 
last year and this year. 

Commissioner Stark said she feels very confident this will be a nice addition to Tukwila. 

6



Page 5 of 5 
January 24, 2019 
BAR Minutes 

 
Commissioner Watters said she looks forward to seeing the improved entry level housing and 
diversification as well as activation of the community. 
 
The Commissioners were in consensus that the project will be a nice addition for the community. 
 
MOTIONS: 
 
Commissioner Hansen moved to approve with conditions case number L18-0112, Variance,  
based on the findings and conclusions contained in the staff report dated January 14, 2019. 
Commissioner Mann seconded the motion. Motion passed. 
 
Commissioner Hansen moved to approve with conditions case number L18-0065, Design Review 
Major Modification, based on the findings and conclusions contained in the staff report dated January 
14, 2019. Commissioner Mann seconded the motion. Motion passed. 
 
Commissioner Hansen moved to approve with conditions case number L08-079, Preliminary 
Subdivision Plat, based on the findings and conclusions contained in the staff report dated January 
14, 2019. Commissioner Mann seconded the motion. Motion passed. 
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT: 
 

• An update was given of upcoming public hearings through May. 
 

Submitted by:  Wynetta Bivens   
   Planning Commission Secretary 
 
Adjourned:   8:10 PM 
 
 
 
 
 

7



8



 

 

City of Tukwila 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 

 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 

 

   

 

 
TO:   Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Minnie Dhaliwal, Planning Supervisor and Andrea Cummins, Urban 

Environmentalist  
 
DATE:  February 19, 2019 
 
SUBJECT: Update of TMC 18.45, Environmentally Sensitive Areas 
 
 
 
ISSUE 
 

Periodic update of the critical area regulations to reflect current best available science (BAS) as 
required by the Growth Management Act. 
 
BACKGROUND 

Staff had a work session with the Planning Commission on this item on November 8, 2019. The 
staff report for the November 8, 2018 meeting is available online. Here is the link. 

At the Nov 8, 2018 meeting, the Planning Commission asked for some additional information on 
the following topics: 

 
1. Mitigation plans and monitoring costs: 

 
At the last work session, the Planning Commission did not make a final decision on wetland 
buffers; and asked staff to provide examples of mitigation plans and associated monitoring 
costs. See Attachment A for a mitigation plan for buffer reduction of a stream. See Attachment B 
for a mitigation plan for filling some wetlands and doing offsite mitigation. Also, included in these 
attachments is the cost estimate for the mitigation and monitoring.  
The Department of Ecology recommends the buffers listed in table below. It should be noted 
that the buffer widths shown in the table below assume that the buffer is vegetated with native 
plants and minimization measures listed in the second table are implemented. If the buffer is 
unvegetated, sparsely vegetated, or vegetated with invasive species, the buffer would need to 
be re-planted or the buffer width increased to provide adequate buffer functions. 

9

http://records.tukwilawa.gov/WebLink/1/edoc/309307/Planning%202018-11-08%20%20COMPLETE%20AGENDA%20PACKET%20-%20CRITICAL%20AREAS%20CODE%20UPDATE.pdf
http://records.tukwilawa.gov/WebLink/1/edoc/309307/Planning%202018-11-08%20%20COMPLETE%20AGENDA%20PACKET%20-%20CRITICAL%20AREAS%20CODE%20UPDATE.pdf


INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
February 19, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 

   

 

Category 

Wetland 
buffer 
width 
(ft), 

current 
TMC 

Wetland buffer width (ft), Ecology 2014, high-intensity land use impact 

Habitat 
score  

<6 

 
 

Habitat 
score  

<6 

Habitat 
score  

6-7 

 
 

Habitat 
score  

6-7 

Habitat 
score 8-
9 

Habitat score 
8-9 

  Standard  
Buffer 

Alternate 
Buffer if 
impact 
minimization 
measures 
taken 

Standard 
Buffer 

Alternate 
Buffer if impact 

minimization 
measures 

taken, plus 100 
feet vegetated 

corridor 
between 

wetland and 
priority habitats 

Standard 
Buffer 

Alternate Buffer 
if impact 

minimization 
measures taken, 

plus 100 feet 
vegetated 

corridor between 
wetland and 

priority habitats 

I 100 100  75 150 110 300 225 

II 100 100 75 150 110 300 225 

III 80 80 60 150 110 300 225 

IV 60 50 40 50 40 50 40 

 
  
Listed below are the impact minimization measures that may allow 25 percent reduction from 
the upper range of recommended buffers: 

 
Disturbance Required Measures to Minimize Impacts 

Lights • Direct lights away from wetland 
Noise • Locate activity that generates noise away from wetland 

• If warranted, enhance existing buffer with native vegetation 
plantings adjacent to noise source 

• For activities that generate relatively continuous, potentially 
disruptive noise, such as certain heavy industry or mining, 
establish an additional 10’ heavily vegetated buffer strip 
immediately adjacent to the outer wetland buffer 

Toxic runoff • Route all new, untreated runoff away from wetland while 
ensuring wetland is not dewatered 

• Establish covenants limiting use of pesticides within 150 feet 
of wetland 

• Apply integrated pest management 

10



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
February 19, 2019 
Page 3 
 
 

   

 

Disturbance Required Measures to Minimize Impacts 

Stormwater runoff • Retrofit stormwater detention and treatment for roads and 
existing adjacent development 

• Prevent channelized flow from lawns that directly enters the 
buffer 

• Use Low Intensity Development (LID) techniques where 
appropriate (for more information refer to the drainage 
ordinance and manual) 

Change in water regime • Infiltrate or treat, detain, and disperse into buffer new runoff 
from impervious surfaces and new lawns 

Pets and human 
disturbance 

• Use privacy fencing OR plant dense vegetation to delineate 
buffer edge and to discourage disturbance using vegetation 
appropriate for the ecoregion 

• Place wetland and its buffer in a separate tract or protect with 
a conservation easement 

Dust • Use best management practices to control dust 
 

 
Based on the field work done to categorize the wetlands north of I-405, majority of the wetlands 
are Category III wetlands, with a low habitat score of 3-5. Buffer quality at the vast majority of 
wetlands is unhealthy (too narrow, dominated by invasive species, or sparsely vegetated.) Initial 
comparison of buffers required under the existing code and buffers recommended by the 
Department of Ecology indicates that buffers will increase for some wetlands while a few 
wetlands may see reduction in the required buffer width.  
 
Policy Options for buffer widths: 
  Pros Cons 
Option 1 Adopt the standard buffer widths 

recommended by the Department 
of Ecology 

The larger buffers 
will provide better 
buffer function given 
majority of the 
buffers are sparsely 
vegetated; easier for 
the developer as no 
replanting or 
monitoring required  

Buffer widths will 
significantly increase 
which could limit 
development potential; 
quality of buffers will not 
improve as no replanting 
required. 

Option 2 Adopt the standard buffer widths 
recommended by the Department 
of Ecology; but allow alternate 
buffer if impact minimization 
measures are taken. This option 
assumes that the existing buffer is 
vegetated with native plants. It 
should be noted that most existing 
buffers are not vegetated with 
native plants, therefore standard 
buffer widths would apply under 
this option.  

Provides options for 
the developer  

Quality of buffers will not 
improve as no replanting 
required. Also, since the 
state of existing buffers 
is degraded, it is likely 
that under this option 
standard buffers will 
apply so this option will 
likely be similar to 
Option 1 during 
implementation. 

11



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
February 19, 2019 
Page 4 
 
 

   

 

Option 3 Adopt the standard buffer widths 
recommended by the Department 
of Ecology; but allow alternate 
buffer if impact minimization 
measures are taken AND buffer is 
replanted 

Provides options for 
the developer with 
incentives for buffer 
enhancement 

Requires monitoring of 
the replanted buffer for 
at least five years 

 
At the November 8, 2018 meeting the Planning Commission did not make a final decision on 
this item. Staff recommends Option 3. 

 
2.  Exempt wetlands:  

 
The existing code provides an exemption for certain wetlands that are under 1,000 
square feet. The exemption is from sequencing (showing that the impact cannot be 
avoided or minimized). Mitigation of the impacts is still required per Ecology. Exempt 
wetlands have to meet the following criteria:  
 
a) habitat score under five; 
b) are not associated with a riparian habitat or Shorelines of the State; 
c) are not part of a wetland mosaic, and  
d) do not contain priority habitat.  
 
Per Ecology guidance, this exemption may be extended to isolated Category IV 
wetlands under 4,000 square feet. Here are policy options that the Planning Commission 
considered at the November 8, 2018 meeting: 
 
  Pros Cons 
Option 1 Keep the existing 

code and exempt 
wetlands up to 1000 
sq. ft with mitigation 
for wetland impacts 

These are exempt under 
the existing code. Code 
language could be 
clarified that wetland 
impacts still need to be 
mitigated. 

Some larger 
wetlands that could 
qualify for 
exemption would 
not qualify. 

Option 2 Exempt wetlands up 
to 4000 sq. ft. with 
mitigation for wetland 
impacts 

Increase the exemption to 
the highest allowed under 
BAS. Wetland impacts 
are mitigated 

Mitigation is off site 
or by fee in lieu. 
Loss of wetlands in 
Tukwila. Buffer 
impacts are not 
mitigated. 

Option 3 Exempt wetlands up 
to 1000 sq. ft. with 
mitigation for wetland 
impacts; exempt 
wetlands up to 4000 
sq. ft. with mitigation 
for wetland and buffer 
impacts 

Increase the exemption to 
the highest allowed under 
BAS. Two tiers of 
mitigation: wetland and 
buffer impacts are 
mitigated for wetlands 
larger than 1000; and 
only wetland impacts 
mitigated for wetlands 
smaller than 1000 sq. ft. 

Mitigation is off site 
or by fee in lieu. 
Loss of wetlands in 
Tukwila. 

 

12



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
February 19, 2019 
Page 5 
 
 

   

 

At the November 8 work session, the Planning Commission recommended Option 3, but 
asked staff to do some additional research and provide data on how many wetlands 
would be impacted under Option 3.  
 
See Attachment C for the map of known wetlands in Tukwila that are less than 1000 
square feet; and those that are between 1000 to 4000 sq. ft. Here is the data: 
 

             1,000 square feet or less: 5 wetlands 
 

1,001-4,000 square feet: 17 wetlands; all are part of a mosaic except for 4 of them.  
 
It should be noted that 13 out of 17 wetlands that are between 1,001 to 4,000 square 
feet in size would not qualify for the exemption as they are part of a wetland mosaic.  
 
Based on this additional research staff recommends Option 1.  
 
 

3. Non-conforming provisions:  
At the last work session, the Planning Commission asked staff to do additional research 
to establish new non-conforming thresholds for development in the wetland and stream 
buffers; and tie the new thresholds to incentives for improving the buffer and/or water 
quality.  
 
Tukwila Municipal Code 18.70.040 and .050 addresses code provisions for any non-
conforming uses or structures in Tukwila. See Attachment D for Tukwila’s code. See 
Attachment E for comparison of non-conforming provisions of other cities. Attachment F 
is an excerpt from Kirkland’s code that has very specific guidelines for expansion of non-
conforming structures in the critical area buffers. 
 
The policy options for the Planning Commission to consider are: 
 
A. Vertical Expansion  Pro Con 
Option 1 Allow existing buildings 

to expand vertically to 
add upper stories in 
exchange for buffer 
enhancement  

Allow 
improvements 
to existing 
buildings and 
achieve buffer 
enhancement 

Reduces 
future potential 
of the non-
conforming 
structure to 
come into 
compliance 
 

Option 2 Do not allow vertical 
expansion 

Preserves 
potential for 
non-
conforming 
structure to 
come into 
compliance 
with critical 
areas code in 
the future.  
 

Restricts 
development 
potential. 
Missed 
opportunity for 
buffer 
enhancement 

13



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
February 19, 2019 
Page 6 
 
 

   

 

B. Lateral Expansion  Pro Con 
i) Expansion to the 

building side 
that is opposite 
of critical area 

   

Option 1 Allow expansion on side 
of the building opposite 
of critical area in 
exchange for buffer 
enhancement; but limit it 
to one time expansion  

Allow 
improvements 
to existing 
buildings and 
achieve buffer 
enhancement 

Reduces 
future potential 
of the non-
conforming 
structure to 
come into 
compliance. 
Harder to 
administer 

Option 2 Do not allow expansion 
in the buffer 

Preserves 
potential for 
non-
conforming 
structure to 
come into 
compliance 
with critical 
areas code in 
the future. 
Easy to 
administer 

Restricts 
development 
potential. 
Missed 
opportunity for 
buffer 
enhancement 

Staff recommends 
Option 1 

   

ii) Expansion along 
the sides 
provided that 
existing 
distance from 
the structure to 
the buffer’s edge 
is not reduced.  

   

Option 1 Allow expansion along 
the existing building 
lines in exchange for 
buffer enhancement; but 
limit it to one time 
expansion and limit the 
sq. ft. of new intrusion 
into the buffer to less 
than 50 percent of the 
current intrusion. 
Further this option could 
be limited to situation 
where the buffer width is 
at least 75 percent of 
the required buffer 

Allow 
improvements 
to existing 
buildings and 
achieve buffer 
enhancement 

Reduces 
future potential 
of the non-
conforming 
structure to 
come into 
compliance. 
Harder to 
administer 

14



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
February 19, 2019 
Page 7 
 
 

   

 

Option 2 Do not allow expansion 
in the buffer 

Preserves 
potential for 
non-
conforming 
structure to 
come into 
compliance 
with critical 
areas code in 
the future. 
Easy to 
administer 

Restricts 
development 
potential. 
Missed 
opportunity for 
buffer 
enhancement 
 

Staff recommends 
Option 1 

   

iii) Enclosing within 
existing 
footprint (such 
as enclosing 
carport, adding 
roof over decks) 

   

Option 1 Allow enclosing within 
existing footprint 

Less 
restrictive. No 
additional 
impact to the 
buffer. 

 

Option 2 Do not allow enclosing 
within existing footprint 

 Restricts 
development 
potential 
without much 
gain to the 
critical areas. 

Staff recommends 
Option 1 

   

 
4. Geologically Hazardous Areas 

 
Planning Commission had asked if there could be a minimum setback established from a 
steep slope in lieu of preparing a geotechnical report for the property. This section of the 
code is administered by the City’s Public Works Department and their opinion is not to 
establish one standard setback for all slopes. Instead the setback should be established 
by the geotechnical engineer after evaluating site conditions for each site.     

  
RECOMMENDATION 
Consider policy options identified above and identify any additional research needed. Staff will 
then prepare an underline strike out of the code that addresses the gaps identified by the review 
of best available science. The Planning Commission will then hold a public hearing and send a 
recommended draft to the City Council for review and adoption. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Stream buffer monitoring report 
B. Wetland monitoring report  

15



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
February 19, 2019 
Page 8 
 
 

   

 

C. Map of known wetlands in Tukwila that are less than 4000 sq ft.  
D. Tukwila’s non-conforming code provisions 
E. Comparison of non-conforming provisions of other cities. 
F. Kirkland’s non-conforming code provisions 

16



17

minnie
Typewritten Text

minnie
Typewritten Text

minnie
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29

minnie
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT B



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



Southcenter Blvd

S 144th St

§̈¦5

§̈¦5

£¤518

§̈¦405

£¤599

£¤99

S 130th St

S 133rd St

S 158th St

S 144th St

Military Rd S

Interurban Ave S

Tuk
wila

Intl
Blv

d

Longacres Way

37t
hA

ve
S

S 156th St

S 152nd St

Strander Blvd

50th Pl S

S 160th St

53r
dA

ve
S

S126th St

S 140th St

Baker Blvd

Riverside Dr

S 180th St

Minkler Blvd

Inte
rna

tion
al B

lvd

42 n
d A

v e
S

Klickitat Dr

We
st V

alle
y H

wy 
S

S 129th St

Triland Dr

S 120th Pl

Southcenter Mall
Tukwila International Blvd

51s
t A

v e
S

4 2n
d A

ve
S

So
uth

cen
ter 

Pk
wy

48t
h P

l S

Macadam Rd S

Tukwila Pkwy

34t
h A

ve
S

We
st V

alle
y H

wy

Ca
sca

de
Av

e S

Oly
mp

ic A
ve

S

40t
hA

ve
S

S1
84t

h P
l

GatewayDr

48th
Ave S

Andover Park W

East Marginal Way S

S 124th St

65th Ave S

Martin L King Jr Way S

S 150th St

S Glacier St

Todd Blvd

Sperry Dr

Tukwila
Wetlands

1,000 square
feet or less

1,001-4,000
square feet

4,000 square
feet or larger

Tukwila International Blvd

SR
 99

 Ra
mp S 120th Pl

SR 599 Ramp

I-5 Fwy

51s
t A

ve 
S

I-5 Ramp

S 151st St

52n
d A

ve 
S

S 160th St

51s
t A

ve 
S

Klic
kita

t D
r

53r
d A

ve 
S

S 159th St

Sla
de 

Wa
y

We
st V

alle
y H

wy

²

89

minnie
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT C



90



91

minnie
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT D



92



 

Alterations allowed 

according to code: Lateral expansion Vertical expansion Repairs/Maintenence Reconstruction Incentives?

Redmond

May be enlarged or 

expanded if the level of 

conformity isn't 

increased, and the impact 

to the critical area isn't 

increased.

Nothing mentioned

Allowed if conformity 

and proximity to critical 

area isn't altered.

Allowed if 50% or more 

of its value has been 

destroyed. Can't 

increase footprint or 

harm critical area 

further.

Groundwater 

protection 

incentive program: 

level of 

nonconformity 

may be increased if 

this mitigates the 

potential 

stormwater 

impacts to 

groundwater.

Bellevue

Prohibited if it further 

encroaches on the critical 

area

Nothing mentioned

Minor, nonstructural, 

and repairs of 

mechanical systems 

within or supporting the 

accessory structure 

allowed

If destroyed by an 

unforseen circumstance, 

the structure can be 

rebuilt in the same 

footprint, if commenced 

within one year of 

destruction. Temporary 

distrubance of 

surrounding areas from 

this construction will be 

restored afterwards.

Nothing mentioned

Issaquah

Building expansion over 

existing impervious 

surface area within the 

buffer is allowed provided 

the building expansion 

does not encroach closer 

toward a wetland or 

stream. 

Existing buildings may 

expand vertically to 

add upper stories.

Nothing mentioned

If destroyed by an 

unforseen circumstance, 

the structure can be 

rebuilt in the same 

footprint.

Nothing mentioned

SEATAC Nothing mentioned Nothing mentioned

Repair and 

maintenance of non-

conforming uses or 

structures is permitted 

provided they do not 

increase the degree of 

nonconformity

Nothing mentioned

Kent
Nothing mentioned

Des Moines

Nothing mentioned

Tukwila Nothing mentioned Nothing mentioned

Allowed if it doesn't 

affect the critical area 

or buffer

Allowed if the 

reconstruction doesn't 

intrude further into or 

impact the sensitive area 

or buffer

Renton Nothing mentioned

Can only be 

reconstructed if the new 

structure or use is in 

conformity with the 

code, except for ongoing 

angricultural use.

Nothing mentioned

Kirkland

If it doesn't increase the 

level of nonconformity, 

expansion is allowed if it 

doesn't encroach further 

into the critical area or 

buffer. If it does increase 

the level of 

nonconformity, very 

specific guidelines must 

be followed (see code).

Upper floor additions 

are allowed above 

the ground floor of 

an existing 

nonconforming 

building if they do 

not encroach closer 

to the critical area 

buffer or structure 

setback from the 

buffer beyond the 

existing exterior 

walls

Allowed provided that 

the work does not 

increase the previously 

approved structure 

footprint or impervious 

area.

Can be reconstructed if 

the new construction 

doesn't increase the 

footprint. Existing buffer 

fencing, native buffer 

vegetation and 

dedication of the critical 

area must be retained.

Nothing explicitly 

mentioned

Reconstruction or additions to existing structures that intrude into critical areas or their buffers shall 

not increase the amount of such intrusion

Where a legally established, nonconforming use of the buffer exists (e.g., a road or structure that 

lies within the width of buffer recommended for that wetland), proposed actions in the buffer may 

be permitted as long as they do not increase the degree of nonconformity, or if no reasonable 

alternative exists. This means no increase in the impacts to the wetland from activities in the buffer.

Non-conforming regulations for critical areas

Only permitted if it doesn't infringe further into 

the critical area or increases the level of 

nonconformity

93

minnie
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT E



94



Kirkland Zoning Code: 

90.185 Nonconformances in Critical Areas 
 
6.    Expansion of Nonconforming Building that Increases the Nonconformance – An existing, 
legally established nonconforming building may be expanded into a critical area buffer or the building 
setback under the following standards and limitations: 

a.    General Standards for Any Expansion 

1)    Expansion is only permitted for those buildings that have not received City approval for a 
critical area or buffer modification allowed under this or a previous code or not received 
approval for a reasonable use exception pursuant to KZC 90.180; 

2)    A one (1) time expansion of each option found in subsections (6)(b) through (e) of this 
section is permitted on a subject property. No more than one expansion is permitted for 
each option. See vegetative buffer standards in KZC 90.130; 

3)    No expansion is permitted in a critical area buffer that is a fish and wildlife conservation 
area without an approved management plan pursuant to KZC 90.95; 

4)    The following nonconforming improvements are allowed without going through review 
under subsections (6)(b) through (e) of this section if a new or replacement foundation is not 
required: 

a)    Upper floor additions are allowed above the ground floor of an existing 
nonconforming building if they do not encroach closer to the critical area buffer or 
structure setback from the buffer beyond the existing exterior walls; 

b)    Existing carports and decks with roofs may be enclosed if the new exterior walls do 
not extend beyond the existing foundation or corner supports of the structure; and 

c)    An interior open courtyard of an existing building may be enclosed if the courtyard 
is covered entirely with impervious material. See subsection (6)(d) of this section if the 
material is not entirely impervious; 

5)    Covering an existing deck with a roof or an existing pathway with a breezeway or similar 
improvements may be proposed using subsections (6)(b) through (e) of this section; 

6)    Any commercial parking required for additions shall not be located in the critical area 
buffer; 

7)    A critical area determination, report and a survey pursuant to KZC 90.105 and 90.110 are 
required if the wetland has not been rated and delineated pursuant to KZC 90.55 within the 
past five (5) years or the stream has not been classified or delineated pursuant to KZC 90.65; 

8)    Compensatory mitigation through buffer restoration shall be provided as follows: 

95

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=570
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.180
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.130
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.95
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=345
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=916
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.105
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.110
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=985
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.55
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=895
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.65
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=532
minnie
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT F



a)    A native vegetative buffer at a minimum ratio of 1:1 (new footprint area is equal to 
or less than vegetative buffer area) shall be provided; 

b)    If the new or expanded building footprint results in removal of a significant tree in 
a buffer, the tree shall be replaced with two (2) native trees in the buffer. The 
replacement tree shall be six (6) feet tall for a conifer and 2-inch caliper for deciduous 
or broadleaf. For a removed significant tree in a buffer that is 24 inches in diameter, the 
tree shall be replaced with three (3) native trees; 

c)    The vegetative buffer shall be located along the edge of the critical area or as close 
to the critical area as possible if the critical area is located off-site; 

d)    The vegetative buffer shall be 10 feet in depth and located across from the building 
expansion area; 

e)    The buffer vegetative standards pursuant to KZC 90.130 shall be used as a guideline 
for the mitigation area; and 

f)    The mitigation is in addition to revegetation of any disturbed area; 

9)    A mitigation planting plan, prepared by a qualified critical area professional approved by 
the City, shall be submitted for approval as part of the building permit. Prior to final 
inspection, replanting of any disturbed area and the mitigation planting shall be installed by 
the applicant and inspected by the City; 

10)    A performance and three-year maintenance and monitoring security shall be submitted 
with the building permit pursuant to KZC 90.165 for the mitigation plan; 

11)    Permanent critical area fencing and signage is required. Prior to issuance of a building 
permit, the Planning Official shall determine the location of the required critical area fencing 
and signage to be installed pursuant to KZC 90.190. 

a)    The fencing shall be located at the edge of the buffer. However, if all or portions of 
the buffer is covered by legally established lawn, nonnative vegetation and/or 
improvements, then the fencing shall be located at the boundary of that maintained 
area; 

b)    If the critical area is off site and that maintained area extends to the property line, 
then the fencing shall be located at the property line; and 

c)    Existing buffer fencing may need to be relocated to meet this provision; 

12)    A critical area covenant on a form approved by the City shall be recorded along with an 
as-built site plan showing the location of the approved expansion and mitigation vegetation 
in the buffer to protect the vegetated portion of the buffer in perpetuity. A critical area 
dedication pursuant to KZC 90.210 is not required for the vegetated portion of the buffer. 

 

96

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=860
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=860
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.130
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=532
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=532
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=532
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=748
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=532
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=539
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.165
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=532
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=665
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.190
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=720
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=720
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=532
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.210


b.    Expansion into Critical Area Buffer on Side of the Building Opposite of Critical Area 

1)    The footprint of an existing building may be expanded into the critical area buffer on the 
side of the building opposite of the critical area buffer up to a maximum of 1,000 square 
feet. The existing building must be between the addition and the critical area (see Chapter 
180 KZC, Plate 26); 

2)    Only a one (1) time expansion of this option is permitted for the subject property. See 
subsection (6)(a)(2) of this section; and 

3)    See general standards in subsection (6)(a) of this section for an expansion. 

c.    Expansion into Structure Setback from the Buffer 

1)    The footprint of an existing building may be expanded into the structure setback up to a 
maximum of 500 square feet; 

2)    If an addition is located at the edge of the buffer, the portion of the buffer next to the 
side of the addition abutting the buffer is considered a structure setback from the buffer. 
Only necessary maintenance and repair of the addition are permitted in this portion of the 
structure setback. No improvements pursuant to KZC 90.140 are permitted in this portion of 
the structure setback; 

3)    Only a one (1) time expansion of this option is permitted for the subject property. See 
subsections (6)(a)(2) of this section; and 

4)    See general standards in subsection (6)(a) of this section for a building expansion. 

d.    Expansion into Critical Area Buffer but No Closer than the Existing Building 

1)    The footprint of an existing building may be expanded into the critical area buffer, but 
no closer than the edge of the existing building nearest to the critical area, up to a maximum 
of 500 square feet (see Chapter 180 KZC, Plate 26); 

2)    An interior open courtyard of an existing building may be enclosed up to 500 square feet 
if the courtyard is covered partially or entirely with pervious material. This improvement can 
be done in conjunction with subsection (6)(d)(1) of this section if the total new impervious 
area of the expanded building does not exceed 500 square feet; 

3)    The minimum buffer width for the addition shall be 60 percent of the required buffer 
width standard pursuant to KZC 90.55 for wetlands and KZC 90.65 for streams; 

4)    Only a one (1) time expansion of this option is permitted for the subject property. See 
subsections (6)(a)(2) of this section; and 

5)    See general standards in subsection (6)(a) of this section for a building expansion. 

 

97

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ180/KirklandZ180.html#180
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ180/KirklandZ180.html#Plate26
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=916
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=916
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=916
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=916
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.140
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=916
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ180/KirklandZ180.html#180
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ180/KirklandZ180.html#Plate26
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.55
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=985
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.65
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=895


e.    Expansion into Critical Area Buffer between the Building and the Critical Area 

1)    The footprint of a building may be expanded into the critical area buffer between the 
building and the critical area up to a maximum of 250 square feet (see Chapter 180 KZC, 
Plate 26); 

2)    The new footprint must be attached to the original building and not to any subsequent 
footprint addition under subsection (6) of this section; 

3)    The minimum buffer width for the addition shall be 60 percent of the required buffer 
width standard pursuant to KZC 90.55 for wetlands and KZC 90.65 for streams; 

4)    Only a one (1) time expansion of this option is permitted for the subject property. See 
subsection (6)(a)(2) of this section; and 

5)    See general standards in subsection (6)(a) of this section for a building expansion. 

 

98

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ180/KirklandZ180.html#180
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ180/KirklandZ180.html#Plate26
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=325.15
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.55
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=985
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/html/KirklandZ90/KirklandZ90.html#90.65
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kirkland/cgi/defs.pl?def=895

	1. 02-28-19 PC Agenda
	2. 1-24-19 Public Hearing Minutes (Wynetta Bivens)
	3. Staff report
	4. Attachment A Stream buffer monitoring report
	5. Attachment B Wetland monitoring report
	6. Attachment C Wetlands 4000 sf or less
	7. Attachment D Tukwila's non-conforming code provisions
	8. Attachment E Comparison of non-conforming provisions of different cities
	9.Attachment F Kirkland critical areas non-conforming code provisions



